
1

Agenda
  

Contact Officer: Ron Schrieber, Democratic Services officer

Tel: 01235 422524

E-mail: ron.schrieber@southandvale.gov.uk

Date: 4 July 2018

Website: www.southoxon.gov.uk www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

A MEETING OF THE

Joint Audit and Governance Committee
WILL BE HELD ON THURSDAY 12 JULY 2018 AT 6.30 PM

MEETING ROOM 1, 135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, MILTON, OX14 
4SB

Members of the Committee:

South Oxfordshire District Council
Ian White (Co-Chair)
Toby Newman
Alan Thompson
John Walsh

Vale of White Horse District Council
Toby Newman
Chris Palmer
Alan Thompson

Preferred Substitutes
South Oxfordshire District Council
Joan Bland
Yvonne Constance
David Nimmo-Smith
Helen Pighills

Vale of White Horse District Council
Yvonne Constance
Helen Pighills
Judy Roberts
Robert Simister
Henry Spencer
VacancyReg Waite
Catherine Webber

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request.  These 
include large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any 
other special requirements (such as access facilities) please contact 
the officer named on this agenda.  Please give as much notice as 
possible before the meeting.

Public Document Pack



2

1 Apologies for absence  

To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.  

2 Minutes  (Pages 5 - 8)

To adopt and sign as a correct record the Joint Audit and Governance Committee 
minutes of the meeting held on 26 March 2018 (attached).  

3 Declarations of interest  

To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on 
the agenda for this meeting.   

4 Urgent business and chairman's announcements  

To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be 
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the 
matters urgent, and to receive any announcements from the chairman.  

5 Public participation  

To receive any questions or statements from members of the public that have 
registered to speak.  

6 Payroll key performance indicators (KPIs), progress report 
and rectification plan  (Pages 9 - 34)

At its meeting held on 26 March 2018 (Minute 57 refers), the committee considered 
the internal audit report on payroll 2017/18 and requested Capita and the 5 
Councils’ Partnership client representative to circulate the payroll KPIs for the last 
six months, a progress report and the rectification plan to committee members as 
soon as possible, so that members can give notice of questions prior to Capita's 
report back to the next meeting.

These are attached.

7 Impact of Capita restructuring of accountancy service on 
completion of statement of accounts  

To receive an update from the chief executive/head of finance.

8 Internal audit management report quarter one 2018/2019  
(Pages 35 - 42)

To consider the report of the interim audit manager (attached).



3

9 Internal audit activity report quarter one 2018/2019  (Pages 43 - 
58)

To consider the report of the interim audit manager (attached).

10 Internal audit annual report 2017/2018  (Pages 59 - 71)

To consider the report of the interim audit manager (attached).

11 Work programme  (Pages 72 - 77)

To consider the work programme (attached).

MARGARET REED

Head of Legal and Democratic 



4



1

Minutes

OF A MEETING OF THE

Joint Audit and Governance Committee

HELD ON MONDAY 26 MARCH 2018 AT 6.30 PM
MEETING ROOM 1, 135 EASTERN AVENUE, MILTON PARK, MILTON, 

OX14 4SB

Present 
Members:
South Oxfordshire District Councillors:  Kevin Bulmer (Chairman), Toby Newman and 
Richard Pullen (in place of Charles Bailey)
Vale of White Horse District Councillors: Dudley Hoddinott, Simon Howell and Chris 
Palmer

Apologies:

Charles Bailey tendered apologies. Richard Pullen substituted for him.

Officers 

Sandy Bayley, Susan Harbour, Simon Hewings, William Jacobs, Margaret Reed, Ron 
Schrieber and Mark Stone

Also present: 

Councillors Jane Murphy and John Walsh (South Oxfordshire District Council), Malcolm 
Haines (EY), Lisa Thomas (Five Councils’ Partnership), Clare Dorey, Raj Patel and 
Richard Spraggett (Capita).

50 Apologies for absence 

South Oxfordshire District Councillor Charles Bailey had submitted apologies for absence. 
Councillor Richard Pullen substituted for him.

51 Minutes 

RESOLVED: to adopt as a correct record the minutes of the committee meeting held on 
29 January 2018 and agree that the chairman signs them as such.

Public Document Pack

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



2

52 Declarations of interest 

None.

53 Urgent business and chairman's announcements 

The chairman announced that:

 He had agreed to defer agenda item 9, internal audit review of five councils’ 
partnership governance arrangements, to a future meeting, to enable renegotiation 
of the contract and the inter-authority agreement to be confirmed.

 In view of the number of items scheduled for the next meeting, he had requested 
that an additional meeting be arranged in late June/early July.

 Committee members should restrict their questioning of Capita staff to technical 
matters.

 He was concerned about the timing of Capita’s proposed restructuring of the 
accountancy team and its potential impact on the completion of South and Vale’s 
statements of accounts.  Accordingly, he had asked the chief executive and/or head 
of finance to report back to the committee on this matter.

 Following this meeting, the chief executive would brief members on the 
renegotiation of the five councils’ contracts.

54 Public participation 

None.

55 Annual report on the Councillors' Code of Conduct 

The committee considered the report of the monitoring officer on complaints received 
under the councillors’ code of conduct during the 2016/17 municipal year and, where 
concluded, the outcome.

The report stated that, although South and Vale councils had direct responsibility for 
maintaining Standards in Public Life, they were very limited in terms of sanctions, 
particularly in relation to parish councillors.  This meant that it was often necessary to take 
a pro-active and/or alternative way to resolve disputes.

RESOLVED:  to note the annual report on the councillors’ code of conduct for the 2016/17 
municipal year.

56 External auditor's progress report 

The external auditor gave a brief progress report on its interim work on the statement of 
accounts audit and stated that no significant issues had been identified to date.

In response to a member’s question, the committee was informed that were either council 
to fail to meet the statutory deadline for completion of the 2017/18 statement of accounts 
then the consequences would be largely reputational.

RESOLVED:  to note the external auditor’s progress report.  

Page 6

Agenda Item 2



3

57 Internal audit activity report quarter four 2017/2018 

The committee considered the interim audit manager’s report on internal audit activity 
during the fourth quarter 2017/18. This summarised the outcomes of recent audit activity.

Four audits had been completed during the quarter, two of which had received limited 
assurance.

Payroll 2017/2018

The committee considered the main findings and recommendations of the internal audit 
report. Officers and representatives of Capita and the Five Councils’ Partnership attended 
to provide further updates and answer members’ questions.

Members noted that many of the report’s recommendations had been implemented or 
were likely to be implemented in the near future. However, they expressed concern about 
the continuing level of errors in staff salary calculations. The chief executive stated that the 
impact on staff was not acceptable. 

The committee were informed that a rectification plan for payroll accuracy was in place to 
address the issues identified. Many of the issues were around the training/turnover of 
payroll staff and these were being addressed.

The committee noted that there were key performance indicators (KPI’s) regarding payroll 
accuracy.

Capital management and accounting 2017/2018

The committee considered the main findings and recommendations of the internal audit 
report.

RESOLVED: to

1. note the internal audit activity report for the fourth quarter of 2017/18; and

2. request Capita and the 5 Councils’ Partnership client representative to circulate the 
payroll KPIs for the last six months, a progress report and the rectification plan to 
committee members as soon as possible, so that members can give notice of 
questions prior to Capita's report back to the next meeting. 

58 Internal audit review of Five Councils' Partnership governance 

Consideration of this item was deferred to a future meeting.

59 Internal audit management report quarter four 2017/2018 

The committee considered the interim audit manager’s management report on internal 
audit for the fourth quarter of 2017/18.

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



4

RESOLVED: to note the internal audit management report for the fourth quarter of 
2017/18.

60 Internal audit annual plan 2018/2019 

The committee considered the interim audit manager’s report which explained the process 
for setting the internal audit plan and for calculating the resources available and which set 
out the proposed internal audit plan for 2018/19.

RESOLVED: to approve the internal audit plan 2018/19.

61 Statement of accounts 2017/18 

The committee considered a report of the head of finance and chief accountant (Capita) 
setting out the progress being made towards the completion of the 2017/18 statements of 
accounts and revised statements of accounting policies for both councils for approval.

The committee was informed that the Capita accountancy team was making good 
progress toward meeting the new statutory deadline. However, completing the statements 
of accounts on time was dependent on parties outside of finance providing information in 
accordance with the agreed timetable.

RESOLVED: to

1. note progress on completing the 2017/18 statements of accounts; and 

2. approve the revised statements of accounting policies as set out in Appendix 1 (South 
Oxfordshire District Council) and Appendix 2 (Vale of White Horse District Council).

62 Work programme 

The committee considered the work programme and noted that, in view of the number of 
items scheduled for the next meeting and the additional reports it had requested, a further 
meeting would be arranged in late June/early July.

The meeting closed at 8.05 pm

Chairman Date

Page 8

Agenda Item 2



Net Pay Accuracy Performance

South Oxfordshire and Vale of 
White Horse

26/06/2018 

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 6



Contents:

1. South Oxfordshire Net Pay Accuracy 
2. Vale of White Horse Net Pay Accuracy
3. Rectification Plan Status
4. Other Performance indicators and service improvement

P
age 10

A
genda Item

 6



South Oxfordshire Net Pay Accuracy 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18 May-18

South Oxfordshire - Net Pay Accuracy

Total Total in SLA

0

20

40

60

80

100

Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18 May-18

South Oxfordshire

SLA Score Target

1. 99%+ accurate net pay performance in the last 4 of the last 6 months
2. Variance vs 100% performance:

• Dec 2017 - 6 overpayments for Cornerstone Casuals. All due to manual keying
• Jan 2018 – 38 expenses were not paid. 1 Childcare Voucher for a leaver that was not removed from the order in January 2018. 
• Feb 2018 – 3 exceptions: TUPE staff were incorrectly set up on the payroll system.
• Mar 2018 – 2 exceptions - 1 underpaid pension contribution, 1 insufficient payment recovery deducted
• Apr 2018  – no exceptions
• May 2018 – 1 payment correction for May due to a final leave payment error in a previous month.

3. Note target is 99.7%.  Performance has been improved over the last 6 months via implementation of a Rectification Plan

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 6



Vale of White Horse Net Pay Accuracy 

1. 99%+ accurate net pay performance in the last 4 of the last 6 months
2. Variance vs 100% performance:

• Dec 2017 – 1 expenses manual keying issue
• Jan 2018 - 11 expenses were not paid
• Feb 2018 – 2 exceptions: TUPE staff was incorrectly set up on the payroll system. 1 payment on OT timesheet not processed
• Mar 2018 – 1 exception: 1 incorrect Council tax amount 
• Apr 2018 – no exceptions
• May 2018 – no exceptions

3. Note target is 99.7%.  Performance has been improved over the last 6 months via implementation of a Rectification Plan

0

50

100

150

200

Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18 May-18

Vale of White Horse - Net Pay Accuracy

Total Total in SLA

0

20

40

60

80

100

Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18 May-18

Vale of White Horse

SLA Score Target

P
age 12

A
genda Item

 6



Rectification Plan Status

• Where errors occur in net pay accuracy we typically use faster payments to correct issue on the same day wherever possible

• The rectification plan actions are now complete and bedding in and we expect the plan to be closed off in the near term. The following is the 
corrective action required:

1 Check that the member’s salary calculations are correct – manual overrides in October October 2017 Complete

2 Audit report sent to Councils October 2017 Complete

3 Salary calculations amended and tested October 2017 Complete

4 Working patterns amended Nov 2017 Complete

5 Communication to staff affected Nov 2017 Complete

6 Corrective payroll action Dec 2017 Complete

7 100% checking of all payrolls Dec 2017 Complete

8 Payroll Controller Induction complete Feb 2018 Complete

9 Revised and refreshed payroll procedures overseen by Payroll SME Feb 2018 Complete

10

Full refresher training will be provided to all staff involved in any part of the payroll procedure

Full refresher training to be provided on annual leave schemes

Full refresher training to be provided on expenses management process

Feb 2018 Complete

11 Client Manager visit to Belfast to review service Feb 2018 Complete

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 6



Other Quarterly, 6 Month and Annual  Performance Indicators:

Reference Description Calculation Measurement 

Period

Target 

Performance 

Level

PI016 Deliver effective high 

quality training 

Number of delegates rating satisfaction with 

learning event as 4 or above out of 5 after 

6 monthly 90%

PI015 Delivery of training in 

line with volumes and 

Number of individuals invited to training in line 

with agreed plan within the Measurement Period 

Quarterly 100%

PI014 Prepare & Submit Year 

End Returns –P11Ds 

Number of P11D returns prepared and submitted 

by P11D statutory deadline in the Measurement 

Annual 100%

PI013 Prepare & Submit Year 

End Returns – P60s 

Number of P60 returns prepared and submitted 

by P60 statutory deadline within the 

Annual 100%

PI006 Timeliness of interface 

files

Number of interface files sent by the scheduled 

date by the Supplier within the Measurement 

Quarterly 100%

PI005 Accuracy of interface 

files

Number of interface files provided without errors 

during the Measurement Period to the Authorities 

Quarterly 100%

• In total there are 2 Key Performance Indicators (including Net Pay Accuracy) and 16 Performance Indicators.
• In the last six months all reported indicators have passed or exceeded contract targets with one exception for 

PI012 in February when 1 of the 12 monthly reports was delayed.
• On-going service improvement is managed through the contract governance via the Service Improvement 

Group

P
age 14

A
genda Item

 6



Other Monthly Performance Indicators:

Reference Description Calculation Target 

Performance

PI012 Timely delivery of 

agreed standard report 

Number of standard reports delivered on time in 

line with agreed timetable in the Measurement 

100%

PI011 Request standard 

employment references 

Number of standard employment references 

requested within 3 working days of new starter 

100%

PI010 Communicate interview 

outcomes to applicants 

Number of interview outcomes advised to HR 

communicated to interviewees within 2 working 

100%

PI009 Process shortlisting 

decisions and 

Number of shortlisting decisions distributed within 

2 working days of HR being advised of decision 

100%

PI008 Ensure job vacancy is 

updated within 

Number of vacancies advised to HR as filled 

updated within 2 working days within the 

100%

PI007 Timely remittance 

payments (payments to 

Calculated as the number of remittance 

payments submitted on time in line with agreed 

100%

PI004 Respond to Generalist 

HR and Employment 

Number of requests responded to within 2 

working days during the Measurement Period 

99.00%

PI003 New starters and 

changes updated on 

Number of new starters and changes updated on 

to system in Measurement Period prior to payroll 

100.00%

PI002 Produce contracts of 

employment for new 

Number of contracts of employment issued within 

3 working days of receipt of request within the 

100.00%

PI001 Timely submission of 

RTI FPS and EPS files

Number of Authority staff regarding whom tax 

and NI reporting was submitted on time in the 

100.00%

KPI002 Payroll timeliness of 

employee payments

Number of payments to Authority staff in each 

Measurement Period paid in line with expected 

dates divided by the total number of payments to 

Authority staff in the Measurement Period

This calculation is to exclude new starters, which 

100.00%

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 6



 
 

1 
 

 

Capita Internal Audit Report 

Payroll 2017/2018 

SOUTH OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

AND  

VALE OF WHITE HORSE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Draft issued: 30 January 2018 

 

Capita Management Response 

 

Draft issued Friday 9th February 2019 

 

Capita June 2018 Progress Update  

 

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 6



 
 

2 
 

 
MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 

1.1 This report details the progress made in relation to the recommendations made during 

the internal audit review of procedures, controls and the management of risk in relation to 

payroll.  The audit was undertaken in accordance with the 2017/2018 audit plan agreed 

with the audit and governance committee of South Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) 

and Vale of White Horse District Council (VWHDC).   

2. PREVIOUS RECOMMENDATIONS RESTATED 

1. Policies and procedures (Medium Risk)  

Recommendation Progress  Responsibility Status  

a) Version control on the policies 
should be enhanced to in-
clude: 

 the author of the policy; 

 the date the policy was 
approved and by whom; 

 the next review date. 
 

b) Policies that still refer to Crow-
marsh Gifford i.e. travel and 
expenses policy, should be re-
viewed and amended to re-
flect Milton Park as the coun-
cil’s base premises. 

 

Presently, S&V have requested that 

no policy changes are implemented. 

In order to progress this 

recommendation, the prioritisation 

of policies will need to be agreed 

with S&V HR lead and dates agreed 

for amendments and updated 

versions.  This will form part of the 

Annual Service Delivery Plan and a 

meeting is arranged for July 2018. 

 

Raj Patel – Head of 
Service 

 

Ed Dubberley 

S&V Lead HR 
Advisor 

 

Claire Maynard – 
S&V HR 

 

In progress in 
partnership with 
Council HR 

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 6



 
 

3 
 

c) The HR policies should be re-
viewed in accordance with 
agreed timescales and reflect 
any changes due to the 5CP 
arrangements. 

 

2. User access - payroll system (Low Risk)  

Recommendation Progress Responsibility Status  

a) All inactive and duplicate oper-
ator accounts should be deac-
tivated or removed from the 
payroll system as soon as pos-
sible. 
 

b) A regular pro-active review of 
operators on the ResourceLink 
system should be undertaken 
to ensure all staff members still 
require access. 

Recommendation A – Capita has 

undertaken an audit of all 

ResourceLink users, and all non-

users, leavers and duplicate 

records have been deleted.  

Recommendation B – Capita has 

completed the audit in 

recommendation A, and a regular 

check is completed on a set date. 

It is current Shared Service Centre 

practice that this is completed 

approximately every 35 days 

throughout the year.  

Capita now provide S&V with a 

starter and leaver report which will 

allow robust monitoring for both 

Capita and the councils. 

Stephen Dalton 

Service Director  

Complete in line 
with audit 
recommendation 
and timescales 

 

 

 

Complete in line 
with audit 
recommendation 
and timescales 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 6



 
 

4 
 

AMENDMENTS TO STANDING DATA 

3. Update request to recruit form (Low Risk)  

Recommendation Progress  Responsibility Status 

The request to recruit form is 

reviewed and updated to include 

service accountant (Capita) as a 

signatory, so that the cost centre 

code is confirmed prior to the post 

being added onto the 

ResourceLink system. 

The request to recruit for has been 

amended and agreed and in use. 

We are jointly working on producing 

easy to follow process flow 

documents to assist the council staff 

to navigate the recruitment process.  

There are currently discussion 

regarding a council site visit to 

Capita to review service and any 

continuous service improvements 

that can be made to support both 

parties.  

Stephen Dalton 

Service Director  

 

 

Complete in line 
with audit 
recommendation 
and timescales 

 

 

 

4. ResourceLink training (High Risk)  

Recommendation Progress Responsibility  

After the councils are satisfied 

with the accuracy of the data on 

the ResourceLink system, all line 

managers should be given 

sufficient training so they are 

aware of what is required when 

completing new starters, leavers 

and updating any changes to 

contract details on the system. 

Capita will support the provision of 

additional training as necessary to 

upskill managers. In addition we will 

provide quick guidance notes. The 

Council is reviewing its Induction 

Procedure to ensure new joiners 

receive appropriate training. 

Raj Patel 

Head of Service  

 

Claire Maynard 

S&V HR Lead 

In progress in 
partnership with 
Council HR 

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 6



 
 

5 
 

We are jointly working on producing 

easy to follow process flow 

documents to assist the council staff 

to navigate the recruitment process.  

In partnership with other councils, a 

video training product is being 

developed to support all councils. 

 

5. Notification forms 

 

(Medium Risk) 

 

Recommendation Progress  Responsibility  

Whilst the pre ResourceLink: 

 notification of appointment 
forms, 

 notification of leaver forms, 
and 

 contract variation forms 
are being used, a reminder 

should be sent to all line 

managers to: 

 fully complete the form, so 
that there are no gaps on Re-
sourceLink; 

 confirm from their service ac-
countant (Capita) the cost 
centre code for the post and 
to ensure that the accountant 
(Capita) signs the form; 

 use the correct and most up-
to-date form, which can be 
found on AskHR. 

All forms have been amended and 

agreed and in use, and guidance 

notes provided. 

We are jointly working on producing 

easy to follow process flow 

documents to assist the council 

staff to navigate the recruitment 

process. 

 

Stephen Dalton 

Service Director 

Complete in line 
with audit 
recommendation 
and timescales 

 

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 6



 
 

6 
 

 

6. Mid-month salary calculations (High Risk)  

Recommendation  Progress Responsibility Status 

For any mid-month salary 

calculations, new starters, leavers 

or changes to contract, payroll 

team (Capita) should 

independently check to confirm 

that the month’s salary is 

calculated correctly. 

Capita have reviewed and updated 

its payroll control documents to 

ensure that all calculation as 

described above, are independently 

reviewed and sense checked for 

accuracy prior to payroll processing.  

Stephen Dalton 

Service Director 

Complete in line with 
audit recommendation 
and timescales 

 

 

7. Calculating annual leave (Medium Risk)  

Recommendation Progress Responsibility Status 

A decision should be made to 

ensure that a consistent 

approach is taken when 

calculating the annual leave for 

the leaver’s final salary, to either 

round up/down to the nearest day 

or to one decimal point. 

It has been confirmed that annual 

leave calculations showed to be 

rounded up to the nearest half 

day.  This has been communicated 

to Capita. 

 

Claire Maynard 
S&V HR 

Complete in line with 
audit recommendation 
and timescales 

 

 

8. Incorrect calculations (High Risk)  

Recommendation Progress Responsibility Status 

The four calculation errors not 

recorded in Capita’s report during 

their investigation, should be 

reviewed and a decision should 

Capita has reviewed the errors and 

the council have confirmed action to 

be taken.  

Stephen Dalton 

Service Director 

Complete in line with audit 
recommendation and 
timescales 

 P
age 21

A
genda Item

 6



 
 

7 
 

be made by the councils 

regarding the next action taken. 
 

 

9. Salary calculation 

 

(High Risk) 

 

Recommendation  Progress Responsibility Status 

a) For a consistent approach, the 
councils should decide on one 
calculation when calculating 
salary mid-month adjustments 
and leaver’s annual leave pay. 
 

b) The decision should be pro-
posed to the relevant stake-
holders, i.e. Unison, and ap-
proved in line with the coun-
cils’ joint constitution. 
 

c) After approval, Capita should 
be made aware of the decision 
and when to start using that 
one calculation. 

 
d) The calculation should also be 

used by the councils when cal-
culating the hourly rate on the 
pay scales, which is available 
to all staff via the councils’ in-
tranet site. 

The calculation has been agreed 

and has been communicated to 

Capita.  

Claire Maynard 

S&V HR 
Complete in line with audit 
recommendation and 
timescales 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 6



 
 

8 
 

 

10. Overtime incorrectly calculated (High Risk)  

Recommendation Progress Responsibility Status 

The incorrect overtime claim 

amounts identified should be 

reviewed and appropriate action 

taken. 

Capita have reviewed the 4 

cases highlighted and have 

received instruction to make 

the underpayments identified.  

 

Stephen Dalton 

Service Director 

Complete in line with audit 
recommendation and 
timescales 

 

 

11. Overtime calculation review 

 

(High Risk) 

 

Recommendation Progress Responsibility Status 

a)  A review should be under-
taken of overtime claims since 
June 2017 to confirm that the 
amount of overtime claimed is 
decimalized and correctly 
paid. 

 

b) If incorrectly paid, the payroll 
team (Capita) should take ap-
propriate action. 

Capita has reviewed and have 

received confirmation from the 

Council on the agreed course 

of action to rectify.  

 

Stephen Dalton 

Operations Director 

Complete in line with audit 
recommendation and 
timescales 

 

 

12. Overtime claim checks (Low Risk)  

Recommendation Progress Responsibility Status 

A reminder should be sent to all 

line managers to fully and 

accurately check all overtime 

claims prior to approval. 

This recommendation has 

undertaken.  

Claire Maynard 

S&V HR 
Complete in line with audit 
recommendation and 
timescales 

 

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 6



 
 

9 
 

 

13. SECURITY OF DATA 

Recommendation Progress  Responsibility Status 

The 5CP performance indicators 

should be revised to also 

measure the quality and 

completeness of the responses 

and actions undertaken to any 

HR and payroll requests, 

complaints and queries made. 

We are in agreement that a 

quick, but poor quality, 

response helps no one, but 

identifying an acceptable 

measure of quality is always a 

challenge as it is difficult to 

exclude any vestiges of 

subjectivity.  For instance, 

whether a response is 

deemed to be of the 

appropriate standard may be 

dependent on whether the 

complainant disagrees with a 

Council policy, or feels the HR 

service should perform in a 

way that is not in line with the 

contracted service.  We will 

seek to address this within a 

wider joint review of the 

performance management 

regime that we will target to 

undertake once TOM has 

been reached and the 

services have bedded in.  In 

the meantime, we will work 

together, informally, to 

ascertain and improve where 

Dawn Adey, Interim 

Partnership Director Clare 

Dorey, Capita Operations 

Director 

Open 

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 6



 
 

10 
 

necessary service user 

satisfaction.   

 

PAYROLL RUN REVIEW 

14. Variance explanations (Medium Risk)  

Recommendation Progress Responsibility Status 

On both the 5% and 10% 

variance reports, clear 

explanations should be given for 

each variance so that both the 

finance team (5CP client) and the 

HR team (5CP client) understand 

the reasons for the variances, 

which would result in less queries 

being made to the payroll team 

(Capita). 

Capita has ensured that all 

payroll staff involved in 

producing and explaining 

variances are briefed to 

ensure that variances are 

clearly and explicitly 

explained. 

 

Stephen Dalton 

Operations Director 

Complete in line with audit 
recommendation and 
timescales 

 

 

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 6



Page 26

Agenda Item 6



Page 27

Agenda Item 6



Page 28

Agenda Item 6



Page 29

Agenda Item 6



Page 30

Agenda Item 6



Page 31

Agenda Item 6



Page 32

Agenda Item 6



Page 33

Agenda Item 6



Page 34

Agenda Item 6



Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee

AGENDA ITEMReport of Interim Audit Manager
Author: Sandy Bayley
Telephone: 01235 422496
Textphone: 18001 01235 422510
E-mail: sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor David Dodds
Tel: 01844 212891
E-mail: david.dodds@southoxon.gov.uk
VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Robert Sharp
Telephone: 07771 760549
E-mail: robert.sharp@whitehorsedc.gov.uk

To: Audit and Governance Committee
DATE: 12 July 2018

Internal audit management report 
quarter one 2018/2019
 
Recommendation

That members note the content of the report.

Purpose of report

1. The purpose of this report is:

 to report on management issues within internal audit;

 to summarise the progress against the 2018/2019 audit plan up to 30 
June 2018; and

 to summarise the priorities for quarter two 2018/2019.

Page 35

Agenda Item 8

mailto:david.dodds@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:robert.sharp@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


2. The contact officer for this report is Sandy Bayley, Interim Audit Manager for 
South Oxfordshire District Council and Vale of White Horse District Council, 
telephone 01235 422496.

Strategic objectives

3. Delivery of an effective internal audit function will support the councils in 
meeting their strategic objectives.

Background 

4. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) from 1 April 2017 states 
that the head of internal audit should prepare a risk-based audit plan, which 
should outline the assignments to be carried out and the resource requirements 
to deliver the plan, for audit committee approval. The joint committee approved 
the 2018/2019 annual internal audit plan on 26 March 2018.

5. The PSIAS also states that the head of internal audit must periodically report on 
performance relative to the plan.  

Management issues

6. Internal audit continues to carry a vacancy and the 2018/19 audit plan allowed 
for a two-month period of reduced capacity, which is now exceeded.  

7. The contract with an agency auditor covering 2017/2018 audit work ended 4 
May 2018 and their work has been finalised by the interim audit manager.

8. Monthly audit manager meetings continue across the five district councils to 
share transition, process and control environment information. 

Progress against the 2018/2019 audit plan

9. Progress against the approved audit plan has been calculated for the quarter 
and year to date and is summarised in appendix 1 attached.

10. Performance figures to date are as follows:

Target YTD Q1 
15/16

Q2 
15/16

Q3 
15/16

Q4 
15/16

Chargeable
(identifiable client and/or specific 
IA deliverable)

74% 78% 78% - - -

Non-Chargeable 
(corporate, not IA deliverable)

9% 4.5% 4.5% - - -

Planned Lost
(i.e. leave)

15% 16.5% 16.5% - - -

Unplanned Lost
(i.e. study, sickness)

2% 1.5% 1.5% - - -

11. As at 30 June 2018 the status of audit work against the 2018/2019 audit plan is 
as follows:

Planned 

Page 36

Agenda Item 8



Strategic, operational and financial assurance work known and approved by the 
joint audit and governance committee.

2018/2019

Pl
an

ne
d

C
om

pl
et

e

D
ra

ft

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s

To
 

co
m

m
en

ce

PLANNED 24 0 0 3 21
Joint 24 0 0 3 21
SODC 0 0 0 0 0
VWHDC 0 0 0 0 0

Adhoc

Unplanned project work based on agreed terms of reference with the audit 
manager (i.e. implementation of new systems) and responsive work issued and 
agreed by the section 151 officer, members or senior management team (i.e. 
investigations).

2018/2019

R
eq

ue
st

ed

C
om

pl
et

e

D
ra

ft

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s

To
 

co
m

m
en

ce

ADHOC 0 0 0 0 0
Joint 0 0 0 0 0
SODC 0 0 0 0 0
VWHDC 0 0 0 0 0

Follow up 

Work undertaken to ensure that agreed recommendations have been 
implemented.  The number of follow-up audits is a rolling number, all internal 
audit reports are followed up after six months unless the area is subject to an 
annual review.

2018/2019

R
eq

ue
st

ed

C
om

pl
et

e

D
ra

ft

In
 p

ro
gr

es
s

To
 

co
m

m
en

ce

FOLLOW-UP 3 2 0 0 1
Joint 3 2 0 0 1
SODC 0 0 0 0 0
VWHDC 0 0 0 0 0

Page 37

Agenda Item 8



Priorities for 2018/2019 quarter two (July 2018 - Sept 2018)

12. The priorities for quarter two are to:
 
 Appoint internal audit manager.
 Review self-assessment against PSIAS and agree action plan.
 Review and update the internal audit strategy. 
 Review and update the internal audit charter.
 Agree revised approach to risk reporting for internal audit 

recommendations.

13. Remaining 2018/2019 planned audit work can be reviewed in appendix 2. 

Financial implications

14. There are no financial implications attached to this report.

Legal implications

15. None.

Risk implications

16. Identification of risk is an integral part of all audits.

SANDY BAYLEY
INTERIM AUDIT MANAGER

Page 38

Agenda Item 8



PLANNED AUDIT 2018/2019

System Name

As at 30 June 2018

Brown Bins (19) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Capital Management and Accounting (21) 14

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Council Tax (23) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Creditor Payments (27) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Discretionary Grants (20) 16

SODC 0.5

VWHDC 0.5

General Ledger (24) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Health & Safety (20) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Housing Benefits and CTRS (21) 30

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Housing Development (18) 20

SODC 5.0

VWHDC 5.0

HR Management (16) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Insurance (27) 16

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Lone Working & Officer Security (23) 14

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

NNDR (23) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Payroll (28) 36

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Petty Cash Procedures (17) 4

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Planning Appeals (15) 20

SODC 1.5

VWHDC 1.5

Pro-active Anti-Fraud Review (26) 14

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Procurement (27) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Property Management (24) 20

SODC 0.5

VWHDC 0.5

Risk Management (28) 14

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Street Naming & Numbering (4) 8

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Sundry Debtors (24) 20

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Travel & Subsistence (18) 16

SODC 7.5

VWHDC 7.5

Treasury Management (21) 14

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

None

None

Full
Substantial

Satisfactory
Limited

Nil

Full
Substantial

Satisfactory
Limited

Nil

Full
Substantial

Satisfactory
Limited

Nil

0

0

0

0

0
0
0
0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0

0
0
0
0

0

0 0

VWHDC PLANNED AUDIT TOTALS - 218 15

0

SODC PLANNED AUDIT TOTALS - 218 15

To Commence Q2

To Commence Q3

0 0

In Progress

To Commence Q2

To Commence Q4

To Commence Q3

To Commence Q2

In Progress

To Commence Q4

APPENDIX 1

H
ig

h

To Commence Q2

To Commence

To Commence Q3

To Commence Q3

To Commence Q2

To Commence Q2

To Commence Q3

To Commence Q3

To Commence Q2

IA PLANNED AUDIT TOTALS

0

0 0000

To Commence Q4

To Commence Q3

000- 436 30.0

0
0

0
0

JOINT

M
e
d

iu
m

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
dStatus

A
u

d
it

 

A
ll
o

c
a
ti

o
n

T
o

ta
l 
D

a
y
s
 

U
s
e
d

Exception Issues

L
o

w

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

To Commence Q2

N
o

. 
o

f 
R

e
c
sAudit Opinion

T
o

ta
l 
N

o
t 

A
g

re
e
d

VWHDC

SODC

To Commence Q4

In Progress

To Commence Q4

Page 39

Agenda Item 8



FOLLOW UP OF AUDITS FROM 2017/2018

System Name Total Days 

Used

Original Audit Opinion Issued Total No. of Recs 

Agreed

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

P
a

rt
ly

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

N
o

t 
Im

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

O
n

g
o

in
g

N
o

 L
o

n
g

e
r 

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

N
e
w

 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s

Training and Development (2nd report) 2016/2017 1 Limited 4 0 0 3 0 1 0

Property Management 2017/2018 0.5 Satisfactory 5 0 0 4 0 1 0

None

None

FOLLOW UP AUDITS 2018/2019

System Name Total Days 

Used

Original Audit Opinion Issued Total No. of Recs 

Agreed

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

P
a

rt
ly

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

N
o

t 
Im

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

O
n

g
o

in
g

N
o

 L
o

n
g

e
r 

a
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

N
e
w

 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s

None

None

None

IA FOLLOW UP DURING 18/19 TOTALS 1.5 9 0 0 7 0 2 0

JOINT FOLLOW UP TOTALS 1.5 9 0 0 7 0 2 0

SODC FOLLOW UP TOTALS 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

VWHDC FOLLOW UP TOTALS 0.0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

SODC

JOINT

SODC

VWHDC

VWHDC

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 8



UNPLANNED WORK 2018/2019

CONSULTANCY

System Name Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By

Post room checks Completed N/A 4 Random check following 2017/2018 information

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

CONTINGENCY

System Name Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

Research following councillor query N/A N/A 1 Head of Corporate Services

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT

System Name Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

AD-HOC ADVICE 

System Name Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By

General audit advice to service teams (incl chasing for information) N/A N/A 11 N/A

General audit advice to service teams (incl chasing for information) N/A N/A N/A

General audit advice to service teams (incl chasing for information) N/A N/A N/A

JOINT

VWHDC

JOINT

SODC

JOINT

VWHDC

SODC

JOINT

SODC

VWHDC

VWHDC

SODC

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 8



PLANNED AUDITS

PRIORITY
JOINT 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4

Brown Bins 19
Capital Mgt & Accounting 21
Council Tax 23
Creditor Payments 27
Discretionary Grants 20
General Ledger 24
Health & Safety 20

Housing Benefits & Council Tax Reduction 21

Housing Development 18

HR Management 16

Insurance 27

Lone Working and Officer Security 23

NNDR 23

Payroll 28

Petty Cash Procedures 17

Planning Appeals 15

Pro-active Anti-Fraud Review 26

Procurement 27

Property Management 24

Risk Management 28

Street Naming & Numbering 4

Sundry Debtors 24

Travel & Subsistence 18

Treasury Management 21

SODC

None

VWHDC

None

FOLLOW UP AUDITS

PRIORITY

JOINT 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 5 1 2 3 4 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 5

Training and Development 1516 (follow up of 2nd report)

Property Management 1718

Credit Card Usage 1718

Budgetary Control 1718
SODC

None
VWHDC
None

UNPLANNED AUDITS

PRIORITY

JOINT 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 5 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 4 5 1 2 3 5 1 2 3 4 4 1 2 3 4 1 2 3 5

SODC

None

VWHDC
None

Key

Projected Start Date

In Progress

Draft Issued

Complete

No longer applicable/ revised arrangements

Deferred until 2018/2019

Confidential - tbc

APPENDIX 2

August September

June

December

February

MarchNovember December January February

J
A

G
C

J
A

G
C

March

J
A

G
C

January

A
G

C

September

February March

October November

A
G

C
A

G
C

A
G

C

A
G

C

December

January

A
G

C

April

J
A

G
C

A
G

C
 

August

AUDIT PLAN SCHEDULE 2018/2019 (As at 30 June 2018)

April May June July

April May July

May June

A
G

C

October NovemberJuly

August OctoberSeptember

P
age 42

A
genda Item

 8



Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee

Report of Interim Internal Audit Manager
Author: Sandy Bayley
Telephone: 01235 422496
Textphone: 18001 01235 422510
E-mail: sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor David Dodds
Tel: 01844 212891
E-mail: david.dodds@southoxon.gov.uk
VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Robert Sharp
Telephone: 07771 760549
E-mail: robert.sharp@whitehorsedc.gov.uk

To: Audit and Governance Committee
DATE: 12 July 2018

Internal audit activity report quarter one 
2018/2019 
Recommendation

That members note the content of the report

Purpose of Report 

1. The purpose of this report is to summarise the outcomes of recent internal audit activity 
at both councils for the committee to consider.  The committee is asked to review the 
report and the main issues arising, and seek assurance that action will be/has been 
taken where necessary. 

2 The contact officer for this report is Sandy Bayley, Interim Internal Audit Manager for 
South Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) and Vale of White Horse District Council 
(VWHDC), telephone 01235 422496.

Page 43

Agenda Item 9

mailto:david.dodds@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:robert.sharp@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


Strategic Objectives 

3. Delivery of an effective internal audit function will support the councils in meeting their 
strategic objectives.

Background 

4. Internal audit is an independent assurance function that primarily provides an objective 
opinion on the degree to which the internal control environment supports and promotes 
the achievements of the council’s objectives.  It assists the councils by evaluating the 
adequacy of governance, risk management, controls and use of resources through its 
planned audit work, and recommending improvements where necessary. After each audit 
assignment, internal audit has a duty to report to management its findings on the control 
environment and risk exposure, and recommend changes for improvements where 
applicable.  Managers are responsible for considering audit reports and taking the 
appropriate action to address control weaknesses. 

 
5. Assurance ratings given by internal audit indicate the following:

Full assurance: There is a good system of internal control designed to meet the system 
objectives and the controls are being consistently applied. 

Substantial assurance: There is a sound system of internal control designed to meet 
the system objectives and the controls are being applied.

Satisfactory assurance: There is basically a sound system of internal control although 
there are some minor weaknesses and/or there is evidence that the level of non-
compliance may put some minor system objectives at risk.

Limited assurance: There are some weaknesses in the adequacy of the internal control 
system which put the system objectives at risk and/or the level of non-compliance puts 
some of the system objectives at risk.

Nil assurance: Control is weak leaving the system open to significant error or abuse 
and/or there is significant non-compliance with basic controls.

6. Each recommendation is given one of the following risk ratings:

High Risk: Fundamental control weakness for senior management action

Medium Risk: Other control weakness for local management action

Low Risk: Recommended best practice to improve overall control

2018/2019 Audit Reports

7. As at 3 July 2018, since the last audit and governance committee meeting the following 
audits and follow up reviews have been completed:

Completed Audits
Full Assurance: 1
Substantial Assurance: 3
Satisfactory Assurance: 5
Limited Assurance: 1
Nil Assurance: 0

Page 44

Agenda Item 9



Assurance 
Rating N

o.
 o

f R
ec

s

H
ig

h 
R

is
k 

R
ec

s

N
o.

 A
gr

ee
d

M
ed

iu
m

  R
is

k 
R

ec
s

N
o.

 A
gr

ee
d

Lo
w

 R
is

k 
R

ec
s

N
o.

 A
gr

ee
d

Joint
Council Tax 17/18 Substantial 2 0 0 1 1 1 1
NNDR 17/18 Satisfactory 3 0 0 2 2 1 1
1. Creditors 17/18 Limited 8 2 2 5 5 1 1
General Ledger 17/18 Satisfactory 5 0 0 2 2 3 3
Petty Cash Spot Checks 
17/18

Full 1 0 0 0 0 1 1

Emergency Planning 
17/18

Satisfactory 6 0 0 2 2 4 4

Tree Management & 
Inspections 17/18

Satisfactory 4 0 0 1 1 3 3

Pro-active anti-fraud 
1718

Substantial 1 0 0 0 0 1 1

Data Protection 1718 Satisfactory 8 0 0 3 3 5 5
Internal Recharges 1718 Substantial 5 0 0 0 0 5 5
SODC 
None
VWHDC
None

Follow Up Reviews

Initial 
Assurance 
Given N

o.
 o

f R
ec

s

Im
pl

em
en

te
d

Pa
rt

ly
 

Im
pl

em
en

te
d

N
ot

 
Im

pl
em

en
te

d

O
ng

oi
ng

N
o 

lo
ng

er
 

ap
pl

ic
ab

le

Joint
Training & Development 
(Second Report) 16/17 Limited 4 0 0 3 0 1

Property Management 
1718 Satisfactory 5 0 0 4 0 1

SODC
None
VWHDC
None

Page 45

Agenda Item 9



8. Appendix 1 of this report sets out the key points and findings relating to the completed 
audits which have received limited or nil assurance, and satisfactory or full assurance 
reports which members have asked to be presented to committee 

9. Members of the committee are asked to seek assurance from the internal audit reports 
and/or respective managers that the agreed actions have been or will be undertaken 
where necessary.  

10. A copy of each report has been sent to the appropriate service manager, the section 151 
officer and the relevant member portfolio holder. In addition, reports are now published 
on the councils’ intranet and limited assurance reports are reviewed by the strategic 
management team.

11. Internal audit continues to carry out a six month follow up on all non-financial and non-
key financial audits to establish the implementation status of agreed recommendations.   
All key financial system recommendations are followed up as part of the annual 
assurance cycle.

Overdue Recommendations

12. Following on from the management restructure, the who’s who section of the intranet is 
not being updated until service teams are in place.  This is now expected to be 
completed by December 2018 and, since the recommendations database relies on the 
who’s who contacts, the update and relaunch of the recommendations database for 
monitoring and reporting overdue recommendations has been delayed.  A revised report 
will be presented to committee as soon as full functionality is resumed.  Auditors continue 
with formal follow up work but the recommendations database will facilitate a more pro-
active approach.

Financial Implications

13. There are no financial implications attached to this report.

Legal Implications

14. None.

Risks

15.  Identification of risk is an integral part of all audits.

SANDY BAYLEY
INTERIM AUDIT MANAGER

 

Page 46

Agenda Item 9



APPENDIX 1

1. Creditors 2017/2018

 
1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report details the internal audit review of procedures, controls and the management 
of risk in relation to creditor payments.  The audit has been undertaken in accordance 
with the 2017/2018 audit plan agreed with the audit and governance committee of South 
Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) and Vale of White Horse District Council 
(VWHDC).  The audit has a priority score of 27.  The audit approach is provided in the 
audit framework in Appendix 1.

1.2 The following areas have been covered during the course of this review to provide 
assurance that:

 appropriate policies and procedures are in place which are adhered to with roles, 
responsibilities and authorisers for creditors clearly documented;

 invoices are promptly processed and supported by appropriate documentation;
 manual, direct debit and BACS transfer payments are strictly controlled, 

appropriately authorised and paid correctly;
 adequate controls are in place to prevent duplicate payments;
 refunds are appropriately authorised and actioned;
 VAT is being appropriately allocated for creditor payments.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 Creditor payments or accounts payable are payments by the councils to third party 
suppliers for goods or services purchased.  Capita exchequer services provide the 
system administration for creditor payments through the financial management system, 
Agresso, as part of the five councils’ partnership (5CP). 

2.2 SODC
At the time of the audit review (February 2018), there were 5,211 invoices received 
since April 2017, which totalled £34,881,191.57.  Of these, 3,091 were purchase order 
invoices totalling £15,294,355.69 and 2,120 were non-purchase order invoices totalling 
£19,586,835.88.

2.3 VWHDC
At the time of the audit review (February 2018), there were 3,891 invoices received 
since April 2017, which totalled £24,378,179.79.  Of these, 1,704 were purchase order 
invoices totalling £20,674,419.93 and 2,187 were non-purchase order invoices totalling 
£3,703,759.86.

3. PREVIOUS AUDIT REPORTS

3.1 Creditor payments was last subject to an internal audit review in March 2017 and ten 
recommendations were raised.  All ten recommendations were agreed and a limited 
assurance opinion was issued.

Page 47

Agenda Item 9



3.2 Of the ten recommendations, three recommendations were implemented at the time of 
the 2016/2017 audit review, one recommendation has been implemented, five have not 
been implemented and one recommendation has been superseded.  Five 
recommendations have been restated as part of this review (Recs 1-5).

4. 2017/2018 AUDIT ASSURANCE

4.1 Limited assurance: There are some weaknesses in the adequacy of the internal 
control system which put the system objectives at risk and/or the level of non-
compliance puts some of the system objectives at risk.

4.2 Eight recommendations have been raised in this review including one relating to 
VWHDC only.  Two are high risk, five medium risk and one low risk.

5. MAIN FINDINGS

5.1 Policies and procedures

5.1.1 The councils have in place financial procedure rules, which are part of the constitution, 
and sets out how the councils manage their finances, including creditor payments.  
Review confirmed that the constitution is up-to-date and was last updated in January 
2018.  The constitution is available to all officers via the councils’ website.  It is noted 
that the updates to the constitution were approved at both SODC and VWHDC full 
council meetings in December 2017.

5.1.2 Procedures are in place for creditor payments, which clearly defines the roles and 
responsibilities of both council officers and exchequer services (Capita) staff.  The 
procedures are available to relevant officers via the councils’ intranet.  It is noted that 
exchequer services (Capita) also have procedures in place for the processes they 
undertake as part of creditor payments.

5.1.3 Area assurance: Full
No recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.2 Invoices promptly processed

5.2.1 Capita’s Darlington team receive the councils’ invoices and Capita exchequer services 
process them for payment through the Agresso financial system.  Invoices are received, 
scanned and checked, prior to payment being made to the supplier.  A target of paying 
96.44% of its supplier invoices within five working days, or agreed payment terms, 
following approval is in place as part of the 5CP contract and usage of purchase orders 
is encouraged to speed up the payment process.  A sample of 50 (25 SODC & 25 
VWHDC) invoices were selected and review found that:
 ten (five SODC and five VWHDC) were non-purchase order invoices, of which one 

was not on the agreed exemption list.
 ten (four SODC and six VWHDC) were paid after 30 days from invoice date, of 

which:
o two SODC invoices were not addressed correctly to the Darlington office but 

were sent to Capita at Shepton Mallet and Cornerstone;
o five (one SODC & four VWHDC) invoices had a delay with the service areas 

recording goods received against the purchase order;
o one VWHDC invoice had a delay in being approved by the service area; and

Page 48

Agenda Item 9



o two (one SODC & one VWHDC) invoices were delayed in being registered onto 
the Agresso system, but were paid promptly once registered.

 all invoices were linked to the suppliers’ account and transaction, and an audit trail 
was available in a form of a flowchart and logbook.

 all invoices were approved appropriately and in line with the approved data grid 
which sets out authorisation levels.

5.2.2 Daily checks are undertaken by Capita of any outstanding invoices and weekly reports 
are sent to the councils via the 5CP client team on invoices that still require coding 
and/or approval.  Invoices parked are also sent on to the councils on a weekly basis to 
establish if the invoices can be paid.  Review of the latest (8 March 2018) outstanding 
invoices’ reports confirmed that they are reviewed and managed appropriately.  It is 
noted that of 295 invoices outstanding over 30 days, 270 (59 SODC & 214 VWHDC) 
relating to property services (Arcadis), were not being coded as Arcadis officers did not 
have access to the Agresso system.  However, Arcadis have been given the access and 
are coding all outstanding invoices on the Agresso system.

5.2.3 Capita’s performance against targets is monitored on a monthly basis as part of the 5CP 
monthly review meetings held by the finance and procurement client team and Capita’s 
accountancy and finance team.  Review of the latest (January 2018) performance stats 
confirmed that exchequer services performance is meeting targets as far as registering 
invoices and paying within five days of approval.

5.2.4 Area assurance: Satisfactory
One recommendation has been made and one has been restated and updated as a 
result of our work in this area (Rec 1 and 6).

5.3 Payments

5.3.1 Manual payments are made for urgent payments, which is separate from the weekly 
payment runs.  These are requested through an urgent payment voucher and dealt with 
the same way as the normal payment requests within the Agresso system.  In 
2017/2018 to date (February 2018), nine (six SODC and three VWHDC) manual 
payments had been made and review confirmed that the payments were correctly 
approved.

5.3.2 BACS is the default payment with cheque payments used as an exception, and no 
suppliers are set up for payment by direct debit.  It is noted that the procedure notes, 
accounts payable (non-PO), state that exchequer services (Capita) will only accept 
changes to supplier details, including bank, if a supplier form is completed and 
submitted by council officers, which is available on the councils’ intranet.  Weekly 
payment runs for both BACS and cheque payments are sent to the councils for 
authorisation, and review confirmed there is appropriate email authorisation prior to 
payments being processed.  Review of BACS payment rejections established that 
SODC rejections are not managed appropriately, as the supplier master file is not 
updated if a rejection is due to the bank account being closed or details being invalid.  It 
is noted that there is a lack of control for VWHDC BACS rejections as the BACS reports 
are downloaded but not sent to exchequer services (Capita), hence supplier bank details 
are not updated on the Agresso system.
  

5.3.3 Area assurance: Substantial
One recommendation has been made and one has been restated as a result of our work 
in this area (Recs 2 and 7).

Page 49

Agenda Item 9



5.4 Duplicate payments

5.4.1 Within the Agresso system is a built-in control preventing invoices from being registered 
if any invoices that are scanned have the same supplier name and invoice number as an 
existing invoice. If duplicates are encountered the invoice is sent to exchequer service 
(Capita) workflow to review and manage accordingly, such as allocating to the correct 
supplier manually.   An Agresso report of invoices paid since 1 April 2017 to date 
(February 2018) was received and review established that there were 24 (15 SODC & 
nine VWHDC) duplicate invoices.  Review of the 24 duplicate invoices found that:
 One SODC invoice was processed to both the correct supplier and another supplier.  

However, the initial requisition was raised incorrectly then another requisition was 
raised for the correct supplier.  Payment was made to both suppliers and a refund 
was received from the incorrect supplier;

 Ten (six SODC & four VWHDC) invoices were registered and paid;
 Five SODC invoices were registered, but were identified as duplicate before 

payment was made and journals were done to reverse the transaction;
 Seven (three SODC & four VWHDC) invoices were raised but not paid, however 

they require reversing;
 One VWHDC invoice was paid to the wrong supplier and a credit note was received 

from the correct supplier.  Although not duplicated, an incorrect payment has been 
made.

5.4.2 The Agresso system also has a built-in control in place to mitigate the risk of duplicate 
payment being made, as it will only allow payment to be made against an invoice once.  
It is noted that there still is potential for duplicate payments if:
 duplicate suppliers are created;
 the sundry supplier account is used when the supplier already has an existing 

account.
Council officers are expected to check existing suppliers prior to requesting a new 
addition and Capita exchequer services are expected to review the request before 
creating the new supplier.  An Agresso listing of all open & closed supplier accounts was 
obtained and review established that there are 3,927 (2,318 SODC and 1,609 VWHDC) 
open supplier accounts, of which 75 were possible duplicate accounts, with more than 
two accounts noted for some suppliers.  These comprise of 34 SODC accounts for 15 
suppliers and 41 VWHDC accounts for 19 suppliers. Review of the 34 (100%) suppliers 
(15 SODC & 19 VWHDC) found 17 (ten SODC & seven VWHDC) suppliers have 
duplicate accounts set up on the Agresso system, all of which are active.

5.4.3 Sundry supplier accounts are used as one-off payments to suppliers that have not been 
set up onto the Agresso system, for example refunds to debtors who have overpaid or 
where there has been a cancellation of service.  Review of the sundry supplier account 
report for 2017/2018 to February 2018 established that 482 (265 SODC and 217 
VWHDC) transactions totalling £172,767.13 (£67,150.42 SODC and £105,616.71 
VWHDC) were paid through the account.  Review of 50 (25 SODC and 25 VWHDC) 
sundry account transactions found that:
 for eight (four SODC & four VWHDC) transactions, the suppliers had multiple 

payments made through the sundry account, hence should have their own individual 
account;

 for eight (five SODC & three VWHDC) transactions, the suppliers already had an 
existing supplier account set up on the Agresso system which should have been 
used;

Page 50

Agenda Item 9



 for two SODC transactions, an existing supplier account is set up, but with differing 
bank account details, therefore a new supplier account should be created as there 
have been multiple payments;

 for one SODC transaction, an existing supplier is account in place, but with a 
different bank account; however, as this was a one-off payment, using the sundry 
supplier was correct.

It is noted that the review of the usage of sundry supplier accounts has stopped since 
the 5CP contract started on 1 August 2016.  

5.4.4 Area assurance: Limited
One recommendation has been made and five restated as a result of our work in this 
area (Recs 3-6 and 8).

5.5 Refunds

5.5.1 Procedures are in place to cover the management of refunds in the form of credit notes 
received being offset against invoices.  Credits since 1 April 2017 to date (February 
2018) were obtained and review of 50 (25 SODC & 25 VWHDC) credit notes confirmed 
that:
 credit notes are offset against the invoice;
 segregation of duties exists between the officer raising and approving the credit 

note;
 credit notes were managed and approved appropriately;
 credit notes were linked to the suppliers’ account and transaction, and an audit trail 

was available in a form of a flowchart and logbook.

5.5.2 For suppliers with a debit balance, i.e. the council is owed money, an invoice is not 
issued to recoup the balance, but the credit is offset against future payments that 
become due or credit notes received.  From review of suppliers with a debit balance as 
at March 2018, there are 70 (39 SODC & 31 VWHDC) suppliers with a total of 
£128,824.42 (£77,296.07 SODC & £51,528.35 VWHDC) owed to the council.

5.5.3 Area assurance: Full
No recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area.

5.6 VAT

5.6.1 The VAT part of invoices, which are received from suppliers, are coded to B0901 X002 
on the Agresso system.  The accountancy team (Capita) has nominated officers in place 
and both the intranet and the accounts payable procedures advise council officers who 
to contact if they have any queries regarding VAT.  Review of 50 (25 SODC & 25 
VWHDC) invoices found that whilst three requisitions raised included VAT, the invoices, 
which did not contain a VAT registration number or a VAT element, were correctly coded 
with no VAT.

5.6.2 Area assurance: Full
No recommendations have been made as a result of our work in this area.

6. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

6.1 Internal audit would like to take this opportunity to thank all staff involved for their 
assistance with the audit.

Page 51

Agenda Item 9



7. CATEGORISATION OF RECOMMENDATIONS

7.1 To assist management in using our reports, we have categorised our 
recommendations according to their level of priority as follows:

High risk Fundamental control weakness for 
senior management action

Recs 3 and 4

Medium risk Other control weakness for local 
management action

Recs 2, 5, 6, 7 and 8

Low risk Recommended best practice to 
improve overall control

Rec 1

OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

PREVIOUS RECOMMENDATIONS RESTATED 

1. Invoice payments (Low Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Supplier invoices are processed and paid in 
a timely manner.

Findings
A sample of 50 (25 SODC & 25 VWHDC) 
invoices were selected and review found 
that ten (four SODC & six VWHDC) were 
paid after 30 days from invoice date, of 
which:
 two SODC invoices were not 
addressed correctly to Darlington and were 
addressed to Shepton Mallet and 
Cornerstone;
 five (one SODC & four VWHDC) 
invoices had a delay with the service areas 
recording goods received against the 
purchase order;
 one VWHDC invoice had a delay in 
being approved by the service area; and
 two (one SODC & one VWHDC) 
invoices were delayed in being registered 
onto the Agresso system, but were paid 
promptly once registered.

Risk
If suppliers are not paid in a timely manner, 
there is a risk of late payment charges or 
reputational damage.

A notification should be sent to 
service areas to ensure that invoices 
are paid promptly, which states that 
they:
 remind their suppliers to 
send all invoices to Darlington;
 record goods received 
against the purchase order 
promptly; and
 review and approve all 
invoices efficiently.

Accounts Payable 
Manager (Capita)

Management Response Implementation 
Due Date

Recommendation is Agreed
When Capita receive invoices with the wrong address, it refers the incorrectly 
addressed invoices back to the supplier for correction and resubmission.

31 May 2018

Page 52

Agenda Item 9



Capita will draft a notification for dissemination to all service areas to reiterate the 
correct procedure for timely payment of creditor invoices.  This will include a request 
for service teams to disseminate the correct “Department Codes” to exempted non-
PO suppliers.

Management response: Accounts Payable Manager (Capita)

2. BACS rejects (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Amendments are made to the supplier bank 
details after BACS payments are rejected.

Findings

SODC
Review of BACS payment rejections 
established that rejections are not managed 
appropriately, as the supplier master file is 
not updated if a rejection is due to the bank 
account being closed or details being invalid.  
In 2017/2018 to date (March 2018), there 
were 44 BACS rejects, of which 14 were for 
suppliers whose BACS was rejected more 
than once for the same reason.

VWHDC
BACS reject notifications are downloaded for 
council tax purposes but the element relating 
to creditor payments is not circulated.  See 
related recommendation 7.

Risk
If supplier bank details are not updated or 
deleted after BACS payments are rejected, 
there is a risk of more payment rejection in 
the future resulting in late payment charges 
or reputational damage.  Also, BACS can 
stop the councils from using the system to 
make payments to suppliers.

After Capita exchequer services 
obtains notification of BACS 
payment rejections, checks should 
be undertaken on the supplier 
master files and, if bank details are 
not already updated, they should 
notify the service area, to obtain the 
correct bank details from the 
supplier.

Accounts Payable 
Manager (Capita)

Management Response Implementation 
Due Date

Recommendation is Agreed
Once BACS rejection has been confirmed, Capita contacts the council with the 
supplier details requesting a supplier update to be completed before the next 
payment run.  If not received in time, the default payment method is changed to 
cheque and the BACS payment is reissued.

Management response: Accounts Payable Manager (Capita)

Implemented

3. Duplicate invoices - received twice (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Duplicate invoices are not registered onto 
the Agresso system and there is a process 
in place to identify any that are registered 
prior to payments being made.

Findings

a) A review should be 
undertaken of duplicate invoices 
and for any duplicate payments 
made, in addition to those identified, 
a refund should be requested to 
recoup the payment as soon as 
possible.

Accounts Payable 
Manager (Capita)/ 
Finance Officer (5CP 
Client)

Page 53

Agenda Item 9



Review of the 24 duplicate invoices found 
that:
 One SODC invoice was processed 
to both the correct supplier and another 
supplier.  However, the initial requisition was 
raised incorrectly and another requisition 
was raised for the correct supplier.  Payment 
was made to both suppliers and a refund 
was received from the wrong supplier.
 Ten (six SODC & four VWHDC) 
invoices were registered and duplicate 
payments were made;
 Seven (three SODC & four 
VWHDC) invoices were registered but not 
paid, however they require reversing.
 One VWHDC invoice was paid 
incorrectly to the wrong supplier and a credit 
note was received to rectify this.

Risk
If duplicate invoices are not identified prior 
to registration, there is a risk of duplicate 
payments being made.

b) Duplicate invoices 
identified after being registered, 
prior to payment, should be 
reversed.
c) Regular reviews of 
duplicate invoices should be 
undertaken to prevent duplicate 
payments from occurring.

Management Response Implementation 
Due Date

Recommendation is Agreed
A review of the creditors ledger has been undertaken, which has looked at all 
invoices.  The councils will look at their service area to mitigate errors in pre-
approved transactions and incorrectly set up purchase orders.  Capita will review 
and enhance existing processes, by additional checks on new supplier requests to 
minimise multiple accounts for the same supplier, the existing invoice duplication 
check, will be more effective to further minimise the risk of duplicate payments, 
either through Darlington or Shepton Mallet.

If the supplier master file can be streamlined, this could significantly reduce 
duplicate invoices. 

Budget holders will be reminded of the importance of ensuring the correct supplier 
is used when setting up requisitions and coding and approving invoices.

Management response: Accounts Payable Manager (Capita)/Finance Officer (5CP 
Client)

31 May 2018

4. Duplicate suppliers (High Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Suppliers only have one open account on 
the Agresso system, if they have the same 
address and banking details.

Findings
Review of 34 (100%) (15 SODC & 19 
VWHDC) possible duplicate suppliers found 
that 17 (ten SODC & seven VWHDC) 
suppliers have a duplicate account set up on 
the Agresso system, all of which are active.  
However, for five of the 17 (three SODC & 
two VWHDC), internal audit could not 
confirm if the bank account details were the 
same as one of the supplier’s account is 

Regular reviews should be 
undertaken on the supplier master 
file to ensure that possible duplicate 
suppliers are reviewed and if 
necessary, closed on the Agresso 
system.

Accounts Payable 
Manager (Capita)

Page 54

Agenda Item 9



paid via cheque, therefore bank account 
details were not provided.

Risk
If suppliers have more than one account on 
the Agresso system, there is a risk of 
invoices being registered more than once 
and payments being against the wrong 
account.

Management Response Implementation 
Due Date

Recommendation is Agreed
After an initial review and cleansing of the supplier master file, Capita will enhance 
their supplier checks by interrogating a greater number of data fields to pick up 
potential duplicates.

Management response: Accounts Payable Manager (Capita)

15 May 2018

5. Sundry supplier account usage (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Service areas undertake relevant checks, 
i.e. establish if an account exists on the 
Agresso system, prior to using the sundry 
supplier account to pay a supplier. 

Findings
Review of 50 (25 SODC & 25 VWHDC) 
sundry account transactions found that eight 
already had an existing supplier account 
which suggests appropriate checks are not 
made prior to using the sundry supplier 
account.  A further eight were repeat 
payments that need their own supplier 
account.

Risk
If checks are not undertaken prior to the 
sundry supplier account being used, there is 
risk of transactions being processed through 
different accounts resulting to duplicate 
payments.

Service areas should be reminded 
to:
 check to confirm if the 
supplier already exists on the 
Agresso system, and
 determine if the supplier 
will be used again, if so, to complete 
the new supplier form so they can 
be set up onto the Agresso system,
prior to raising a payment voucher 
on the sundry suppliers account.

Accounts Payable 
Manager (Capita)

Management Response Implementation 
Due Date

Recommendation is Agreed
Capita will generate a report to highlight misuse of the sundry supplier account for 
the councils.

Management response: Accounts Payable Manager (Capita) 

 15 June 2018

INVOICES PROMPTLY PROCESSED

6. Property invoice delays (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
Supplier invoices are processed and paid in 
a timely manner.

The property services team should:
 continue to register the 
backlog of outstanding non-
purchase order invoices, so that the 

Head of Development 
and Regeneration

Page 55

Agenda Item 9



Findings
The latest (8 March 2018) outstanding 
invoices report was obtained for review, 
which found that there were 295 (81 SODC 
& 214 VWHDC) non-PO invoices over 30 
days.  Of the 295 invoices, 270 (59 SODC 
and 214 VWHDC) invoices related to 
property services, which is contracted out to 
Arcadis.  Since September 2017, due to 
Arcadis not having access to the Agresso 
system, invoices were not registered onto 
the system for approval and payment.  
Arcadis obtained access to the Agresso 
system and are currently registering all 
outstanding invoices for payment.

It is noted that on the 1 April 2018, property 
services team is coming back in-house to 
the councils.

Risk
If suppliers are not paid in a timely manner, 
there is a risk of late payment charges or 
reputational damage.

invoices can be approved and paid 
as soon as possible.
 going forward, have a 
process in place to ensure that the 
invoices received are registered as 
soon as possible, so another 
backlog of invoices doesn’t form and 
that the invoices are approved and 
payment can be made efficiently.

Management Response Implementation 
Due Date

Recommendation is Agreed
The property team is now in-house.  A process is in place to ensure invoices are 
processed as soon as received so that they can be approved and paid efficiently. 

Management response: Head of Development and Regeneration

30 September 2018

PAYMENTS

7. BACS reject notifications (VWHDC only) (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
BACS reject reports are downloaded on a 
weekly basis and sent to the exchequer 
services (Capita) to deal with. 

Findings
On a weekly basis, the council tax manager 
(Capita) downloads the BACS reports from 
the online BACS system and saves them 
onto the council tax electronic directory.  
The council tax manager does not send the 
creditors element of the BACS reports to 
exchequer services (Capita), hence 
correction of supplier bank details is not 
being made.

It is noted that the process for SODC BACS 
rejections differs as the accountant (Capita) 
downloads and sends SODC’s BACS 
reports to exchequer services (Capita) as 
she has access to SODC’s online BACS 
system.  The accountant (Capita) does not 
have access to VWHDC’s online BACS 
system.

The accountancy team (Capita) 
should be provided with access to 
VWHDC’s BACS system, so that 
BACS reject can be dealt with and 
sent to the relevant Capita teams 
appropriately and efficiently.

Accounts Payable 
Manager (Capita)

Page 56

Agenda Item 9



Risk
If BACS rejects are not sent to exchequer 
services (Capita), there is a risk of bank 
details not being corrected on the system 
resulting in further payment rejections and 
possible late payment charges and 
reputational damage.  Also, BACS can stop 
the councils from using the system to make 
payments to suppliers.

Management Response Implementation 
Due Date

Recommendation is Agreed
Capita will investigate the opportunity to replicate the current SODC BACS report 
for VWHDC and for the accountant (Capita) to access the BACS system, to allow 
timely dissemination of BACS reports to exchequer services (Capita), as currently 
provided for SODC.

Management response: Accounts Payable Manager (Capita)

15 June 2018

DUPLICATE PAYMENTS

8. Sundry supplier account review (Medium Risk)
Rationale Recommendation Responsibility
Best Practice
A mechanism is in place to regularly review 
the usage of the sundry supplier account.

Findings
Neither SODC or VWHDC review the usage 
of the sundry supplier accounts.  It is noted 
that prior to the start of the 5CP in August 
2016, the council had a resource to review 
the sundry supplier accounts. This is not a 
function for the 5CP client team and the 
council has not retained a resource for this 
review to continue. 

Review of 50 (25 SODC & 25 VWHDC) 
sundry account transactions found that:
 for eight (four SODC & four 
VWHDC) transactions, the suppliers had 
multiple payments made through the sundry 
account hence should have their own 
individual supplier account;
 for eight (five SODC & three 
VWHDC) transactions, the suppliers already 
had an existing supplier account set up on 
the Agresso system;
 two transactions for one SODC 
supplier had an existing supplier account set 
up, but with differing bank details.  
Therefore, requires a new supplier to be set 
up due to multiple payments.

Risk
If the sundry supplier account is not being 
reviewed on a regular basis, there is risk of 
persistent usage and transactions being 
processed through different accounts, which 
could result in duplicate payments.

A mechanism should be agreed for 
provision of, and regular review of, 
reports on usage of the sundry 
supplier account.  Reminders should 
be issued to service teams when the 
sundry supplier account is used 
inappropriately.

Accounts Payable 
Manager (Capita)

Page 57

Agenda Item 9



Management Response Implementation 
Due Date

Recommendation is Agreed
Please refer to recommendation five.  Capita will generate a report to allow the 
councils to review usage of the sundry supplier account. 

Management response: Accounts Payable Manager (Capita)

 15 June 2018

 

Page 58

Agenda Item 9



Joint Audit and Governance 
Committee

AGENDA ITEMReport of Interim Audit Manager
Author: Sandy Bayley
Telephone: 01235 422496
Textphone: 18001 01235 422510
E-mail: sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
SODC cabinet member responsible: Councillor David Dodds
Tel: 01844 212891
E-mail: david.dodds@southoxon.gov.uk
VWHDC cabinet member responsible: Councillor Robert Sharp
Telephone: 07771 760549
E-mail: robert.sharp@whitehorsedc.gov.uk

To: Audit and Governance Committee
DATE: 12 July 2018

Internal audit annual report 2017/2018 
Recommendation

That members note the content of the report.

Purpose of Report

1. The purpose of this report is to report on the work of internal audit in the year 
ended 31 March 2018, and to advise the committee of the interim audit 
manager’s opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the internal 
control environments at South Oxfordshire and the Vale of White Horse District 
Councils.

2. The contact officer for this report is Sandy Bayley, Interim Audit Manager for 
South Oxfordshire District Council (SODC) and Vale of White Horse District 
Council (VWHDC), telephone 01235 422496.

Page 59

Agenda Item 10

mailto:david.dodds@southoxon.gov.uk
mailto:robert.sharp@whitehorsedc.gov.uk


Strategic Objectives

3. Delivery of an effective internal audit function will support the councils in 
meeting their strategic objectives.

Background 

4. The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards (PSIAS) supersede the CIPFA 
Code of Practice for Internal Audit that had been previously complied with by 
Internal Audit.  Standard 2450 of the PSIAS states that the internal audit 
manager must produce an annual report that:

 provides an annual internal audit opinion and report that can be used to 
inform the governance statement

 confirms the organisational independence of the internal audit activity 
 gives his or her opinion on the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the 

organisation’s control environment;
 discloses any qualifications to that opinion, together with the reason(s) for 

the qualification;
 presents a summary of the audit work from which the opinion is derived, 

including reliance placed on work by other assurance bodies;
 draws attention to any issues the head of internal audit judges particularly 

relevant to the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement;
 compares the work actually undertaken to the work that was planned and 

summarises the performance of the internal audit function against its 
performance measures and targets; 

 comments on conformance with the PSIAS; and
 communicates the results of the internal audit quality assurance 

programme and progress against any improvement plans.

5. The control environment comprises the systems of governance, risk 
management and internal control.  The key elements of the control 
environment include:

 establishing and monitoring the achievement of the organisation’s 
objectives;

 ensuring compliance with established policies, procedures, laws and 
regulations;

 ensuring risk management is embedded in the activity of the organisation, 
that leadership is given to the risk management process, and staff are 
trained or equipped to manage risk in a way appropriate to their authority 
and duties;

 ensuring the economical, effective and efficient use of resources, and for 
securing continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are 
exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness;

 the financial management of the organisation and the reporting of 
financial management; and

 the performance management of the organisation and the reporting of 
performance management.

Page 60

Agenda Item 10



Overall Opinion

6. The interim audit manager is satisfied that sufficient internal audit work has 
been undertaken to allow a reasonable conclusion to be drawn as to the 
adequacy and effectiveness of SODC’s and VWHDC’s risk management, 
control and governance processes.  The interim audit manager’s opinion is 
based on the risk-based audits carried out during the year at each council and 
other unplanned work on control systems.  No reliance has been placed on 
the work of other assurance bodies.

7. It is the interim audit manager’s unqualified opinion that based on the areas 
reviewed during the year, satisfactory assurance can be placed on both 
councils’ general risk management, control and governance processes.  
Overall, there is basically a sound system of internal control at both councils, 
but there are some weaknesses which may put some system objectives at 
risk.  It should be noted that there has been a slight improvement in the 
control environment within key financial systems across both councils since 
2016/2017.  Analysis of the ten key financial audit findings in comparison with 
previous years is as follows:

Key financial 
rating 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 
full 3 0 1
substantial 3 2 2
satisfactory 2 4 4
limited 2 4 3
nil 0 0 0

8. Notwithstanding the interim audit manager’s overall opinion, internal audit 
identified a number of opportunities for improving controls and procedures 
across the councils which officers have generally responded to positively.  
Areas of weakness in the control environment continue within payroll, capital 
management and accounting and creditors and have also been identified 
within property management and credit card usage.  Where internal audit 
identified weaknesses which require remedial action, recommendations have 
been made and discussed with officers.  Four joint areas were given full 
assurance – housing benefit and Council Tax Reduction Scheme, grounds 
maintenance, petty cash spot checks, and, for SODC only, LEADER project.

  
9. A summary of the 2017/2018 audits is attached as Appendix 1 and a 

comparison of the internal audit opinions across both councils against two 
previous years is as follows.  Please note that a joint report counts as two as 
there can be differing assurance ratings for each council within a joint audit. 

All planned audit 
ratings 2015/2016 2016/2017 2017/2018 
full 6   (12%) 1   ( 2%) 7   (16%)
substantial 10   (19%) 12  (27%) 4    ( 9%)
satisfactory 16   (31%) 13  (30%) 23  (52%)
limited 20   (38%) 18  (41%) 10  (23%)
nil 0 0 0
TOTALS 52 44 44

Page 61

Agenda Item 10



Summary of Audit Work

10. For 2017/2018, internal audit completed 705 chargeable audit work days 
against a planned 677.  The days comprise of 355 days for SODC and 350 
days for VWHDC.  This includes planned audit work, consultancy work and 
contingency work (i.e. investigations).  A comparison of actual days against 
planned audit days for 2017/2018 is attached as Appendix 2.

11. A total of 21 joint planned internal audit reviews have been undertaken along 
with one which was SODC only and one VWHDC only.  From the 44 
completed audits, seven (16%) achieved a full assurance rating.  Four audits 
(9%) achieved a substantial rating.  For 23 audits (52%) a satisfactory 
assurance rating was achieved.  Limited assurances were appropriate for 10 
(23%) audits. No reviews resulted in nil assurance being given.   In total 217 
recommendations to improve controls and procedures within the councils 
were made.  Of the 217, 24 (11%) were classified as high, 80 (37%) as 
medium and 113 (27%) as low.  A total of two recommendations were not 
agreed by management.

12. Six joint investigations/ad-hoc reviews were undertaken (five completed) 
during 2017/2018 including 5 Council Partnership service readiness work, and 
these utilised 109.5 days.  One SODC ad-hoc review was undertaken 
(completed) which utilised 3.5 days.  Six VWHDC investigations were 
undertaken (four completed) and utilised 14.5 days.  No system development 
work was requested.  Ad-hoc advice is provided to service teams and this 
includes time spent obtaining responses to recommendations.  The ad-hoc 
advice for utilised 17.5 days for SODC and 15 days for VWHDC. 

13. A total of 15 follow-up reviews were undertaken during 2017/2018, utilising 39 
days.  Two of the follow ups included further testing resulting in a second 
report with additional recommendations. From those 15, one related to SODC, 
two related to VWHDC and twelve were joint.  Time has been allocated within 
the 2018/2019 audit plan for further follow-up work.

Issues Relevant to the Annual Governance Statement

14. Specific audit reviews on corporate governance and the council’s anti-fraud 
and corruption policies were not included within the 2017/2018 annual audit 
plan. However, a risk management audit was undertaken in 2016/2017 which 
made 14 recommendations across both councils, including 8 high risk, and 
gave a limited assurance opinion.  A gifts and hospitality audit was also 
undertaken in 2016/2017, which made 1 medium risk recommendation across 
both councils and gave a substantial assurance opinion.  Internal audit has 
undertaken pro-active anti-fraud testing within 2017/2018 which made one 
medium and one low risk recommendation and gave a substantial assurance 
opinion at both councils.  Pro-active anti-fraud testing in 2016/2017 provided a 
limited assurance opinion, so it should be noted that there has been an 
improvement in the control environment in this area.

15. No suspicions of internal fraud and corruption were reported to the interim 
audit manager during 2017/2018.  However, there was an attempted 
fraudulent transaction that was detected by business rate officers and 

Page 62

Agenda Item 10



attempted bank mandate fraud against the councils.  None of these attempts 
resulted in financial loss to the councils.

16. The council's gifts and hospitality policy states that 'The Local Government Act 
and other legislation makes it clear that council employees should not accept 
any fees or reward during the course of their employment other than their 
standard remuneration from their employer'.  The policy goes on to highlight 
where exceptions to this rule are permissible and outlines the process staff 
should follow when offers of gifts or hospitality are made.  The interim audit 
manager has reviewed the two entries declared within the register for 
2017/18, and there were no concerns.  

  
Internal Audit’s Performance

17. The internal audit team comprised three auditors and an assurance manager 
(0.8FTE) for the period 1 April 2017 to 8 August 2017 across both councils.  
For the remainder of the year there was an interim audit manager (1FTE) and 
two auditors.  The auditor vacancy was covered by interim agency auditors for 
69 of the 161 vacancy days.    

18. The performance of internal audit is measured against a number of indicators.  
The out-turn for 2017/2018, including comparison with the previous year, is as 
follows:

Performance Targets Year Ending 
31/03/17

Year Ending 
31/03/18

PT1 To issue 90% of audit notifications at least 
1 month before start of audit fieldwork

100% 95%

PT2 To issue 90% of draft audit reports within 5 
working days of completion of the exit meeting.

100% 100%

PT3 To issue 90% of final audit reports within 5 
working days of receipt of the auditees final 
responses to draft report and recommendations.

100% 100%

PT4 To issue 90% of follow-up notifications at 
least 1 month before start of follow-up work.

95% 100%

PT5 To follow up 90% of final reports within 6 
months of completion of audit.

95% 100%

PT6 To complete the audit fieldwork and issue 
draft reports on 100% of key financial system 
audits within the audit plan.

100% 100%

PT7 To complete the audit fieldwork and issue 
draft reports on 80% of all non key financial 
system audits within the audit plan.

83% 42%

Year Ending 
31/03/17

Target 17/18 Year Ending 
31/03/18

PT8 Chargeable
(identifiable client and/or specific IA deliverable)

76% 76% 79.2%

PT 9 Non-Chargeable 
(corporate, not IA deliverable)

5% 7% 5.9%

Page 63

Agenda Item 10



Lost
(i.e. leave, study, sickness)

19% 17% 14.9%
PT 10 Planned Lost 14% 15% 13.5%
PT 11 Unplanned Lost 5% 2% 1.4%

19. In 2017/2018 the team achieved ten out of 11 of the annual performance 
targets set.  The team’s PT7 target was affected by reports that had not been 
issued as at when a contract auditor’s work period had ended.  
Notwithstanding, the interim audit manager considers it to be an excellent 
team performance, which was achieved during a period of significant change 
to the audit work environment as a result of the management restructure and 
the resulting internal audit vacancy.

Quality Assurance and Improvement Programme

20. As part of the quality assurance programme and to assist in monitoring and 
improving the quality and value of service provided, auditees are asked to 
complete an audit feedback questionnaire on internal audit’s performance.  
Responses received in 2017/2018 are summarised in Appendix 3.

21. All feedback received by the interim audit manager is discussed with the 
relevant auditor.  Where appropriate, the interim audit manager meets the 
officer to discuss their comments in more detail and implement any necessary 
process improvements.

22. There is ongoing monitoring of the performance and quality of internal work 
throughout the year.  All internal audit work is reviewed by the audit manager 
(interim audit manager at present) and feedback provided to auditors 
regarding the quality and audit technique.

23. The PSIAS require periodic internal and external assessments.  An internal 
self-assessment, based on a PSIAS checklist provided by the Chartered 
Institute of Internal Auditors, is in progress and will be presented to the next 
committee along with an action plan to address any revisions needed to 
enable compliance.  An external assessment is to be completed once every 5 
years by a qualified, independent assessor or assessment team from outside 
the organisation.  The external assessment can be in the form of a full 
external assessment, or a self-assessment with independent external 
validation.  

Compliance with the PSIAS

24. There have been no impairments to the independence of internal auditors 
during the period 2017/18.

Financial Implications

25. There are no financial implications attached to this report.

Page 64

Agenda Item 10



Legal Implications

26. None

Risk Implications

27. Identification of risk is an integral part of all audits.

SANDY BAYLEY
INTERIM AUDIT MANAGER

Page 65

Agenda Item 10



PLANNED AUDIT 2017/2018

System Name

As at 30 June 2018

Budgetary Control (17) 10

SODC 9.5 4 0 0 1 1 3 3 0

VWHDC 9.5 4 0 0 1 1 3 3 0

Capital Management and Accounting (21) 14

SODC 7.0 5 1 1 2 2 2 2 0

VWHDC 7.0 5 1 1 2 2 2 2 0

Car Parks (18) 20

SODC 10.0 5 0 0 3 3 2 2 0

VWHDC 10.0 5 0 0 3 3 2 2 0

Council Tax (23) 20

SODC 21.5 2 0 0 1 1 1 1 0

VWHDC 21.5 2 0 0 1 1 1 1 0

Credit Card Usage (20) 8

SODC 4.5 11 2 2 4 3 5 5 1

VWHDC 4.5 11 2 2 4 3 5 5 1

Creditor Payments (27) 20

SODC 10.0 8 2 2 5 5 1 1 0

VWHDC 10.0 8 2 2 5 5 1 1 0

Data Protection (22) 16

SODC 5.0 8 0 0 3 3 5 5 0

VWHDC 5.0 8 0 0 3 3 5 5 0

Discretionary Grants (19) 14

SODC 0.0

VWHDC 0.0

Emergency Planning (19) 10

SODC 0.0 6 0 0 2 2 4 4 0

VWHDC 0.0 6 0 0 2 2 4 4 0

General Ledger (22) 20

SODC 9.0 5 0 0 2 2 3 3 0

VWHDC 9.0 5 0 0 2 2 3 3 0

Grounds Maintenance (18) 18

SODC 7.5 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0

VWHDC 7.5 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0

Housing Benefits and CTRS (22) 30

SODC 14.5 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0

VWHDC 14.5 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0

Housing Development (17) 20

SODC 0.5

VWHDC 0.5

Information Governance (16) 20 To use service area days in

SODC 0.0 18/19

VWHDC 0.0

Internal Recharges (17) 16

SODC 0.0 5 0 0 0 0 5 5 0

VWHDC 0.0 5 0 0 0 0 5 5 0

Licensing (20) 20

SODC 10.0 5 0 0 2 2 3 3 0

VWHDC 10.0 5 0 0 2 2 3 3 0

Lone Working & Officer Security (21) 14

SODC 2.5

VWHDC 2.5

NNDR (21) 20

SODC 10.0 3 0 0 2 2 1 1 0

VWHDC 10.0 3 0 0 2 2 1 1 0

Payroll (29) 36

SODC 27.0 14 6 6 5 5 3 3 0

VWHDC 27.5 14 6 6 5 5 3 3 0

Petty Cash Spot Checks (17) 4

SODC 2.0 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0

VWHDC 1.0 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0

Pro-active Anti-Fraud Review (20) 14

SODC 5.0 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0

VWHDC 5.0 1 0 0 0 0 1 1 0

Property Management (18) 20

SODC 10.0 5 1 1 1 1 3 3 0

VWHDC 10.0 5 1 1 1 1 3 3 0

Sundry Debtors (24) 20

SODC 10.0 5 0 0 2 2 3 3 0

VWHDC 10.0 5 0 0 2 2 3 3 0

Treasury Management (20) 14

SODC 7.0 2 0 0 1 1 1 1 0

VWHDC 7.0 2 0 0 1 1 1 1 0

Tree Management & Inspections (15) 20

SODC 5.0 4 0 0 1 1 3 3 0

VWHDC 5.0 4 0 0 1 1 3 3 0

Leader Project Assurance (18) Completed 10 10.0 2 0 0 0 0 2 2 0

Leader Project Grant Verification (12) Not Applicable 4 0.0 Function now performed by RPA

not accountable body so no longer

needed.

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

The Beacon (19) Completed 10 11.5 13 0 0 6 6 7 7 0

Full
Substantial
Satisfactory

Limited
Nil

Full
Substantial
Satisfactory

Limited
Nil

Full
Substantial
Satisfactory

Limited
Nil

59

37 36 54 54

1

3
2
12
5

114 12 12 43 42 59

1

0
VWHDC PLANNED AUDIT TOTALS - 229 198.75

0

SODC PLANNED AUDIT TOTALS 12- 233 197.25 103 12

4
2
11
5

APPENDIX 1

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

Limited

Limited

H
ig

h

Limited

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

Substantial

Substantial

Limited

Limited

Full

Satisfactory

Completed

Completed

Completed

Completed

Completed

Completed

Satisfactory

Limited

Full

Completed

Completed

Completed

Completed

Completed

Completed

Completed

Completed

Completed

Carry Forward 18/19

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

Completed

Completed

Completed

Completed

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

Full

Satisfactory

Full

Limited

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

Carry Forward 18/19

IA PLANNED AUDIT TOTALS

0

- 462 396.0

23
10

7

Satisfactory

Limited

Limited

Satisfactory

4

T
o

ta
l 

N
o

t 

A
g

re
e

d

JOINT

Substantial

M
e

d
iu

m

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
dStatus

A
u

d
it

 

A
ll

o
c

a
ti

o
n

T
o

ta
l 

D
a

y
s

 

U
s
e

d
 1

7
/1

8 Exception Issues

L
o

w

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

N
o

. 
A

g
re

e
d

Completed

N
o

. 
o

f 
R

e
c

sAudit Opinion

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

Substantial

Limited

Satisfactory

Full

Full

Satisfactory

217 211311378802424

VWHDC

Satisfactory

Now consultancy 18/19

Not applicable

SODC

Full

Carry Forward 18/19

Completed

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

Satisfactory

Page 66

Agenda Item 10



FOLLOW UP OF 2017/2018 AUDITS

System Name Total Days 

Used

Original Audit Opinion Issued Total No. of Recs 

Agreed

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

P
a

rt
ly

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

N
o

t 
Im

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

O
n

g
o

in
g

N
o

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

A
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

N
e
w

 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s

HR Recruitment (2nd report) 2015/2016 4 Limited 7 2 0 2 0 0 3

Training and Development (2nd report) 2016/2017 6 Limited 4 0 0 1 0 0 3

CIL (2nd Report) 2016/2017 12 Full 4 1 0 0 0 0 3

Comments & Complaints 2016/2017 1 Satisfactory 5 0 2 3 0 0 0

Building Control 2016/2017 4 Limited 5 3 0 2 0 0 0

Environmental Protection 2016/2017 2 Limited 10 7 3 0 0 0 0

Property Management 2017/2018 0.5 Satisfactory 5 0 0 4 0 1 0

Training and Development (follow up of 2nd report) 2016/2017 1 Limited 4 0 0 3 0 1 0

Cornerstone 2016/2017 2 Limited 5 3 2 0 0 0 0

The Beacon 2017/2018 1.5 Satisfactory 13 7 6 0 0 0 0

    

FOLLOW UP AUDITS 2017/2018

System Name Total Days 

Used

Original Audit Opinion Issued Total No. of Recs 

Agreed

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

P
a

rt
ly

 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

te
d

N
o

t 
Im

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

O
n

g
o

in
g

N
o

 l
o

n
g

e
r 

A
p

p
li

c
a

b
le

N
e
w

 

re
c

o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s

Car Parks 2017/2018 2 Satisfactory 5 5 0 0 0 0 0

Grounds Maintenance 2017/2018 1 Full 1 0 0 0 1 0 0

HR Recruitment (2nd report follow up) 2015/2016 2 Limited 7 2 4 1 0 0 0

Licensing 2017/2018 1 Satisfactory 5 1 2 2 0 0 0

LEADER Project Assurance 2017/2018 0.5 Full 2 2 0 0 0 0 0

None

IA FOLLOW UP DURING 17/18 TOTALS 39.0 73 33 19 11 1 0 9

JOINT FOLLOW UP 17/18 TOTALS 35.0 53 21 11 11 1 0 9

SODC FOLLOW UP 17/18 TOTALS 2.5 7 5 2 0 0 0 0

VWHDC FOLLOW UP 17/18 TOTALS 1.5 13 7 6 0 0 0 0

0

JOINT

SODC

JOINT

VWHDC

VWHDC

P
age 67

A
genda Item

 10



UNPLANNED WORK 2017/2018

CONSULTANCY

System Name Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By

5 Councils Partnership, including:

  · service readiness payroll

  · service readiness Integra

  · 5CP Governance

In Progress As required

65

18

N/A

Follow up of Review of Crowmarsh Fire March 2015 Completed As required 1.5 September 2017 Audit & Governance Committee

Investigation Templates Completed 10 8 Assurance Manager

NFI matching queries Completed As required 5 N/A

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

Business rates - fraudulent transaction Completed As required 2 N/A

Potential conflict of interest Completed As required 1 Head of Legal & Democratic Services

CONTINGENCY

System Name Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By

Assurance manager work for CMT Completed As required 10 Assurance Manager

Confidentiality Completed As required 2 CMT

Cornerstone - bank change Completed As required 3.5 Assurance Manager

West Way Botley Follow Up In Progress 4 2 Councillor

Planning - Kingston Bagpuize In progress 5 2 Head of Planning

Planning - Shrivenham Completed As required 0.5 Planning Policy Manager

Abingdon BID Completed 3 7 Head of Development & Regeneration

SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT

System Name Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

AD-HOC ADVICE 

System Name Status Audit Allocation Total Days Used Requested By

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

General audit advice to service teams (incl chasing for information) N/A N/A 17.5 N/A

General audit advice to service teams (incl chasing for information) N/A N/A 15 N/A

JOINT

VWHDC

JOINT

SODC

JOINT

VWHDC

SODC

JOINT

SODC

VWHDC

VWHDC

SODC

Page 68

Agenda Item 10



Audit plan 2017/2018 - Reconciliation with actual days                               APPENDIX 2

DESCRIPTION Plan 17/18 Actual at 31/3/2018

Total Days Available for Internal 
Audit Team 884 885

52x5x3 - Auditor x 3FTE 780 762
52x5x0.4 - Assurance Manager 
0.8FTE (0.4 IA resource) 104 46

contractor cover  77
   
Total Lost Days for Internal Audit 
Team (pro-rata AM) 148 128.5

Annual Leave Entitlement (planned) 90 79
Bank Holiday and Christmas Closure 
(planned) 41 36.5

Sick Leave (unplanned) 7
Other unplanned 
election/compassionate

17 6

Study Leave 0 0
   
Total Non-Chargeable Days for 
Internal Audit Team 59 51.5

Training and Development 12 5
Admin/Corporate Issues 35 38.5
Corporate/Team Meetings 12 8
   
Total Chargeable Days for Internal 
Audit Team 677 705

Audit Management 70 71.5
Adhoc Audit Advice (4 days each 
service area) 24 33.5

Consultancy/System Development (2 
days each service area) 12 15.5

Contingency (Investigations) (5 days 
each service area) 30 27

Follow Up Work 2016/2017 10 39
Follow Up Work 2017/2018 10 In above
Town and Parish Councils 19 24
5 Councils Partnership 40 49
Audit Plan 2017/2018 418.5

bfwd work 462 27
   
Total Lost + Non-Chargeable and 
Chargeable Days 884 885

   
Proportion of Chargeable Days 76% 79.7%
Proportion of Non-Chargeable Days 7% 5.8%
Proportion of Lost Days 17% 14.5%
   

Page 69

Agenda Item 10



INTERNAL AUDIT FEEDBACK APPENDIX 3

Three audit feedback questionnaires were returned during 2017/2018.  Questionnaire responses were received for the following audits:

Grounds Maintenance
LEADER Project
Car Parks
Tree Management & Inspections

AUDIT PLANNING AND SCOPE OF WORK

Very Good Good Satisfactory Poor Very Poor Did Not Answer
1. Consultation on the scope and coverage of the audit 3 1
2. Minimal disruption to daily activities 2 2

COMMUNICATION

Very Good Good Satisfactory Poor Very Poor Did Not Answer
3. Consultation and communication during the audit 3 1
4. Communication of audit findings and recommendations 4

QUALITY OF AUDIT REPORT

Very Good Good Satisfactory Poor Very Poor Did Not Answer
5. Clarity and conciseness of the audit report 3 1
6. Fulfilment of the audit scope and objectives 3 1
7. Accuracy, validity and significance of the audit findings 3 1
8. Audit recommendations - constructive, practical and logical 3 1

PROFESSIONAL PROFICIENCY

Very Good Good Satisfactory Poor Very Poor Did Not Answer
9. Professionalism of the auditor(s) 4
10. Advice given by the auditor(s) 2 2

P
age 70

A
genda Item

 10



GENERAL

Very Good Good Satisfactory Poor Very Poor Did Not Answer
11. Usefulness of audit in identifying risks and improving 
controls

1 3

12. Overall evaluation of the quality of the audit service provided 3 1

TOTALS

Very Good Good Satisfactory Poor Very Poor Did Not 
Answer

34 14

OTHER COMMENTS RECEIVED

I was very grateful for Nilesh’s patience during the audit as we along with everyone else are very busy and he was very understanding and worked around 
our other commitments.

A very easy process and helpful findings too.

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 10



Audit and governance
work programme

containing Audit and Governance Committee work to 
be undertaken 

30 JULY 2018 - 30 MARCH 2019

      

The audit and governance work programme belongs to the councils’ Joint Audit and Governance Committee and sets out a schedule of work 
for the period shown above.  It is a rolling plan, subject to change at each Committee meeting; however, the councils may allocate additional 
work.  

Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes
External auditor's 
annual governance 
reports 2017/18

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 30 
July 2018

William Jacobs, 
Email: 
william.jacobs@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk

The external auditor 
publishes an annual 
governance report on 
the councils’ activities.

To consider the 
external auditor's 
annual governance 
reports 2017/18

Statements of 
accounts 2017/18

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 30 
July 2018

Richard 
Spraggett, Email: 
richard.spraggett
@southandvale.g
ov.uk

The councils must 
produce statements of 
accounts each year.

To approve the 
statements of accounts 
2017/18

Annual governance 
statements 2017/18

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 30 
July 2018

Ron Schrieber, 
Email: 
ron.schrieber@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk

The councils are 
required to publish 
annual governance 
statements

To approve the annual 
governance 
statements 2017/18P

age 72

A
genda Item

 11

mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:ron.schrieber@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:ron.schrieber@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:ron.schrieber@southandvale.gov.uk


Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes

South and Vale Audit and Governance Work Programme
2

Letters of 
representation to the 
council's external 
auditor

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 30 
July 2018

William Jacobs, 
Email: 
william.jacobs@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk

The committee's co-
chairmen and the 
section 151 officer are 
required to sign a 'letter 
of representation' to the 
external auditor, as part 
of the process in 
completing the 
statement of accounts.

To consider and agree 
the letters of 
representation

Treasury 
management outturn 
2017/18

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 30 
July 2018

Richard 
Spraggett, Email: 
richard.spraggett
@southandvale.g
ov.uk

The committee is 
responsible for the 
scrutiny of the councils’ 
treasury management 
activity.

To consider the 
treasury management 
outturn for 2017/8

Internal audit activity 
report – second 
quarter 2018/19

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 15 
October 2018

Sandy Bayley 
Email: 
sandy.bayley@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk

The council audits its 
services through the 
internal audit service in 
line with the approved 
internal audit plan 
2018/19.

To summarise the 
outcomes of recent 
internal audit activity 
for the committee to 
consider.  The 
committee is asked to 
review the report and 
main issues arising, 
and seek assurance 
that action has been or 
will be taken where 
necessary.

This is a recurring 
agenda item, and is 
updated at each 
meeting.  

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 11

mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk


Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes

South and Vale Audit and Governance Work Programme
3

Internal audit 
management report - 
second quarter 
2018/19

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 15 
October 2018

Sandy Bayley, 
Email: 
sandy.bayley@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk

The committee monitors 
the effectiveness of 
internal audit each 
quarter against the 
approved audit plan

To report on 
management issues, 
summarise the first 
quarter progress of the 
internal audit team 
against the 2018/19 
audit plan, and 
summarise the 
priorities and planned 
audit work for quarter 
three.

This is a recurring 
agenda item, and is 
updated at each 
meeting.  

Comments and 
complaints 2017/18

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 15 
October 2018

Sally Truman
Email: 
sally.truman@so
uthandvale.gov.u
k

The committee is 
responsible for 
monitoring the councils’ 
comments and 
complaints.

To review the 
comments and 
complaints received 
during 2017/18

Code of Conduct – 
annual report 2017/18

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 15 
October2018

Margaret Reed, 
Email: 
margaret.reed@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk

The Committee has 
responsibility for having 
an overview of the 
standards of conduct 
framework for 
councillors, any co-
opted members and 
parish councillors.

To review complaints 
received under code of 
conduct.

P
age 74

A
genda Item

 11

mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sally.truman@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sally.truman@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sally.truman@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:margaret.reed@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:margaret.reed@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:margaret.reed@southandvale.gov.uk


Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes

South and Vale Audit and Governance Work Programme
4

Risk Management 
Update

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 15 
October 2018

Yvonne Cutler-
Greaves, Email: 
Yvonne.cutler-
greaves@southa
ndvale.gov.uk

The committee agreed 
to receive regular 
progress reports on the 
implementation of the 
risk management 
framework

To review and 
comment on progress

External auditor's 
annual audit letter

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 15 
October 2018

William Jacobs, 
Email: 
william.jacobs@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk

The external auditor is 
responsible for auditing 
the councils’ business.

To consider the 
external auditor's 
annual audit letter 
2017/18
.
 

Treasury 
management outturn 
2017/18

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 15 
October 2018

Richard 
Spraggett, Email: 
richard.spraggett
@southandvale.g
ov.uk

The committee is 
responsible for the 
scrutiny of the councils’ 
treasury management 
activity.

To consider the 
treasury management 
outturn for 2017/8

External auditor’s 
report on the 
certification of claims 
and returns 2017/18

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 28 
January 2019

William Jacobs, 
Email: 
william.jacobs@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk

The external auditor to 
report on certification 
and other assurance 
work.

To consider the 
external auditor's 
report

External auditor’s 
audit planning 
reports 2018/19

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 28 
January 2019

William Jacobs, 
Email: 
william.jacobs@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk

The external auditor to 
report on how it intends 
to carry out its 
responsibilities as 
auditor

To consider the 
external auditor's 
report

P
age 75

A
genda Item

 11

mailto:Yvonne.cutler-greaves@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Yvonne.cutler-greaves@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Yvonne.cutler-greaves@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:william.jacobs@southandvale.gov.uk


Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes

South and Vale Audit and Governance Work Programme
5

Treasury 
management mid-
year monitoring 
2018/19

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 28 
January 2019

Richard 
Spraggett, Email: 
richard.spraggett
@southandvale.g
ov.uk

The committee is 
responsible for the 
scrutiny of the councils’ 
treasury management 
activity.

To review the councils’ 
treasury management 
activities for the first 
six months of the 
2018/19 financial year.
 

Treasury 
management 
strategies 2018/19

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 28 
January 2019

Richard 
Spraggett, Email: 
richard.spraggett
@southandvale.g
ov.uk

The committee is 
responsible for the 
scrutiny of the councils’ 
treasury management 
activity and to propose a 
strategies to Councils, 
via Cabinets, for the 
management of this 
function in the 
forthcoming year.

To scrutinise the 
treasury management 
strategies and policies 
and if required, make 
recommendations for 
amendment to 
Cabinets
 

Risk Management 
Update

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 25 
March 2019

Yvonne Cutler-
Greaves, Email: 
Yvonne.cutler-
greaves@southa
ndvale.gov.uk

The committee agreed 
to receive regular 
progress reports on the 
implementation of the 
risk management 
framework

To review and 
comment on progress

Internal audit plan 
2019/20

Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 
25 March 2019

Sandy Bayley, 
Email: 
sandy.bayley@s
outhandvale.gov.
uk

The council audits its 
services through the 
internal audit service.

To approve the internal 
audit plan for 2019/20

P
age 76

A
genda Item

 11

mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Yvonne.cutler-greaves@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Yvonne.cutler-greaves@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:Yvonne.cutler-greaves@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:sandy.bayley@southandvale.gov.uk


Item title Meeting date Lead officer Why is it here? Scope Notes

South and Vale Audit and Governance Work Programme
6

Review of statement 
of accounting 
policies 

Joint Audit and 
Governance 
Committee 25 
March 2019

Richard 
Spraggett, Email: 
richard.spraggett
@southandvale.g
ov.uk

To audit and review the 
policies and principles 
used when compiling 
the 2018/19 accounts. 

P
age 77

A
genda Item

 11

mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk
mailto:richard.spraggett@southandvale.gov.uk

	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	6 Payroll key performance indicators (KPIs), progress report and rectification plan
	Capita SV Payroll Audit Update July 2018 Final
	Capita HR Payroll South  Vale Rectification Plan KPI001 V6 120218 redacted 020718 Final

	8 Internal audit management report quarter one 2018/2019
	Q1 mgmt App 1a - Progress Against Audit Plan 2018-2019
	Q1 mgmt App 1b - Follow up audits
	Q1 mgmt App 1c - Unplanned Audits
	Q1 mgmt App 2 - Audit Plan schedule  2018-2019

	9 Internal audit activity report quarter one 2018/2019
	10 Internal audit annual report 2017/2018
	Ann Rep App 1a - Progress Against Audit Plan 2017-2018
	Ann Rep App 1b - Follow up Audits
	Ann Rep App 1c - Unplanned audits
	Ann rep App 2 Audit plan 201718 reconciliation to actual
	Ann Rep App 3 - Annual Report Audit Feedback

	11 Work programme



